



Cashflows Go

A guide for partners

Version 1.0 – August 2022



\bigcirc

Table of contents

About this guide	4
For more information	4
Introduction	5
Benefits of using Cashflows Go	5
How Cashflows Go looks	5
Getting started	11
What you need	11
What you need to do	11
How to sign in to Cashflows Go	11
How to set your Cashflows Go password	12
How to change your Cashflows Go password or request a reset	12
How to sign out from Cashflows Go	13
How to choose a business or merchant context	14
How to customise the display	16
Managing users	18
How to add a user	19
How to change user details	20
How to delete a user	21
How to unlock a partner user account	22
How to lock an account	23
Viewing customer business information	25
How to view business details of your customers	26
How to view your partner commission plans	27
How to view all of your customer transactions	29
How to search for transactions	30
Viewing merchant dashboards	33
How to view business and contact details of a merchant customer	34
How to view merchant transactions	35
How to view a breakdown of your pricing plans	37
How to view a list of all customer in one place	38
Configuration	39

Cashflows

Copyright

2022 © Cashflows or Cashflows Europe Limited

While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this publication, the information is supplied without representation or warranty of any kind, is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Cashflows Europe Limited. Cashflows Europe Limited, therefore, assumes no responsibility and shall have no liability, consequential or otherwise, of any kind arising from this material or any part thereof, or any supplementary materials subsequently issued by Cashflows Europe Limited. Cashflows Europe Limited has made every effort to ensure the accuracy of this material.



\bigcirc

About this guide

Welcome to this Cashflows Go guide for partners. This guide is for you if you are a partner of Cashflows. This guide describes what Cashflows Go is, the benefits of using it and the features that are available to you when you sign in with partner access permissions.

For an overview of Cashflows Go for merchants, refer to the <u>Cashflows Go Guide</u> which is available from the Cashflows Help Centre.

For more information

The Cashflows Help Centre

Our <u>Cashflows Help Centre</u> has all of our published guides plus answers to questions about Cashflows Go. If you can't find the answer to your question, you can request a new article via your relationship manager or contact the following support teams.

Implementation support

For implementation support before your integration goes live: Email: <u>implementations@cashflows.com</u>

Technical support

If your account is live with us and you need technical help: Email: <u>techsupport@cashflows.com</u>





\bigcirc

Introduction

Cashflows Go is our secure online portal. When you sign in as a partner you can:

- View in one place transactions for all of your customers. This includes all of the businesses and outlets (merchants) that you work with. For information, see To work in partner context
- View transactions for a specified customer (business or outlet). For information, see How to choose a partner, business or merchant context
- View the business details of your customers that are stored in Cashflows Go, for example business name, ID, and contact details. For information, see How to view business and contact details of a merchant
- View your commission and pricing plans. For information, see:
 - How to view your partner commission plans
 - o How to view a breakdown of your pricing plans
- Manage users. For example you can add more users and control access permissions. For information, see Managing users

Benefits of using Cashflows Go

- See all of your customer transactions in one place
- Specify a business or outlet (merchant) and see what they see
- You don't need to sign in as a different business or outlet (merchant) user and you don't need to sign into a different system

How Cashflows Go looks

In Cashflows Go there's a hierarchy of:

- Partner Your organisation
- Business Your customers. Each merchant is set up with a business ID and can have multiple merchant IDs to one business ID
- Merchant

Your customers. The individual merchant IDs under the business ID. Your customers access Cashflows Go via their Business ID and then select the merchant ID of the customer that they want to look into.



Cashflows

Each business and outlet (merchant) can have its own Cashflows Go account.



When you sign into Cashflows Go as a partner, you can choose to work in the context of partner and see transactions for all of your customers and business information for your organisation. You can also choose to view transactions and business information for a selected customer or an individual outlet. This enables you to see what your customers see and is useful if any of them need support. For more information, see How to choose a partner, business or merchant context.





Here's an example that shows what you see when you sign in to Cashflows Go in partner context, without selecting a business or merchant. The first page displayed is the Transactions page.

Note: The columns shown in the examples throughout this guide depend on whether the display has been customised. If a page has a Columns button, you can use it to choose which columns to show or hide. This enables you to focus on the detail that you need most. For information, see How to customise the display.

CashflowsGC) ≓	Transactio	าร				
Dashboard Select merchant		Press '/' to search	Q Search	i 1 Jan 2021 - 31 🛙	Dec 2021 \vec{Filters}	Export ≣≣ Colu	umns
S== Transactions		Date	↓↑ Transaction Reference	Customer Name	Order Reference	Amount Status	
Reporting	\sim	08/11/2021, 10:26:32	211121021667909952		2021Nov08_7	15.00 GBP Paid	>
Configuration Select merchant		08/11/2021, 10:23:38	211121021634224448		2021Nov08_6	25.00 EUR Pending	>
Hour Business	\sim	08/11/2021, 08:49:40	211121021500002628		2021Nov08_5	35.00 GBP Paid	>
음의 Users		08/11/2021, 08:22:18	211121004303356228		2021Nov08_4	15.00 GBP Paid	>
াজ্য Partner					1 - 4 o	f 4 Rows per page: 25	5 ~

Tip: Your organisation's name is displayed at the top of the menu. Your initials are displayed at the bottom.

Here's an example that shows what you see when you sign in to Cashflows Go as a partner and then select a business and a merchant. The first page displayed is the Dashboard page for the selected merchant.

Cashflows Schilling Waßer äöü Schilling) ≓	Dashboard					
 Dashboard 		Current Account Balan	ce Overview				Account Balance Overview
Transactions		Merchant Account Statement	Security Statement	Reserve Statement	Remittance Statement		
Reporting	\sim	GBP 0.00	GBP 0.00	GBP 0.00	GBP 0.00		
ලිළී Configuration							
🖶 Your Business	~	Transactions Overview					☞ GBP ∨
පිපි Users		Day Week Mont	th Year 🛱 Custom	Filters			Compare date
£St Partner		< 5 Jun 2022 16 Jun 2022 17 J	lun 2022 18 Jun 2022 19 Jun 2022	20 Jun 2022 21 Jun 2022 22 Ju	un 2022 23 Jun 2022 24 Jun 2022	25 Jun 2022 26 Jun 2022 27 Jun 20	222 28 Jun 2022 29 Jun 2022 >
		Transaction Count ① O View →	Total Sales Count (j) O	Sales Revenue ① GBP 0.00	Average Transaction Value) Decline Count () O View⇒	Decline Amount (C) GBP 0.00
		5					

Tip: The name of the selected business and merchant are displayed at the top of the Cashflows Go menu.





The available menu options on the left, depend on the context that you choose.



The menu that you see when you sign in to Cashflows Go as a partner is different to the menu that merchants see. For an overview of Cashflows Go for merchants, refer to the <u>Cashflows Go Guide</u> which is available from the Cashflows Help Centre.

The default menu that you see you when you sign in as a partner, has options that:

- Take you straight to the Notifications centre This is where we communicate about planned maintenance and announce new features and releases. For information, see Notifications.
- Display your profile so that you can view contact details if you need to
- Enable you to securely sign out from Cashflows Go For information, see How to sign out from Cashflows Go





Notifications

Unread notifications, have a red dot displayed next to the notifications icon together with the number of unread notifications in brackets.



To read the latest notifications:

1. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Notifications**. The Notifications Center page displays a list of message summaries. New notifications have a **New** label in red so that they stand out from the list.



2. To find out more about a notification, select Read Notification.

Unread notifications available



No unread notifications







Recent and favourite merchants

You can easily return to a merchant that you were recently working on. Select or clear the star next to the business or merchant name to mark the ones that you work with most often as your favourites.

All Recent Favourites		Q Search	×
Businesses		Merchants	
Continue without Business		Continue without Merchant	
Business636_Postman_1	☆ >	Schilling	☆
Business636_Postman_2	☆ >	Schilling Too	\bigtriangleup
MarkTest	☆ >		
Schilling Waßer äöü	☆ >		
Testing R 10.3	★ >		
	1 - 5 of 5	1-	2 of 2
		Cancel	pply

Your favourite merchants are then listed on a separate page:

All Recent Favourites	Q Search
Schilling Waßer äöü 157	Business 🔶
Testing R 10.3 10000001	Business 🔶





 \bigcirc

Getting started

This section explains how to start using Cashflows Go as a partner.

What you need

To use Cashflows Go as a partner you need:

- An internet connection
- A browser
- A Cashflows Go account with *Partner* access permissions. When you become a partner with us, we send you a welcome email from <u>noreply@Cashflows.com</u>. The email tells you that we have created an account for your organisation and includes a link for setting the password for the first user. For information, see How to set your Cashflows Go password.

Tips:

- The link in the email expires after 24 hours. Therefore, we advise you to set your password as soon as you receive your welcome email.
- If you have not received this email, check your Junk folder or contact your account manager.
- You can always request a new password email if you select **Forgotten password?** on the Login page.

What you need to do

To start using Cashflows Go as a partner:

- 1. Sign in to Cashflows Go with your partner account details. For information, see How to sign in to Cashflows Go.
- 2. Set your password. For information, see How to set your Cashflows Go password.
- 3. Add a second partner user. For information, see How to add a user.

How to sign in to Cashflows Go

- 1. Select Cashflows Go.
- 2. Enter your email address.
- 3. Enter your password.

Note: Passwords are case sensitive.

4. Select Sign in.

Warning: If you forget your password and try unsuccessfully to sign in too many times, your account becomes locked. **You cannot unlock your own account**. You either need to ask another partner user to unlock your account or for you or use the Forgotten Password link on the Login page to request a password reset.





How to set your Cashflows Go password

If you are the first user, you can sign in with the account details that we send in the welcome email. For security, the first thing you need to do is set your own password.

Note: You can try to sign in to Cashflows Go up to six times. If the sixth attempt is unsuccessful, your account becomes locked for at least 30 minutes or until we can confirm your identity.

We set this password policy at Cashflows. You cannot change this.

To set your own Cashflows Go password:

- 1. Display the Cashflows Go sign in page.
- 2. Select Forgotten password?
- 3. Enter your email address.
- 4. Select **Email link**. We send you an email that contains a link that you can use to set a new password.
- 5. Select the link. You see the Change password page.
- 6. On the Change password page, enter a new password.
- 7. Retype your new password into the Confirm New Password field.
- 8. Select **Submit**. When you have successfully entered your new password, you see a confirmation page to tell you that your new password is now active. We also send you a confirmation email.

How to change your Cashflows Go password or request a reset

You can change your own password at any time. If you have forgotten your password, you can request a reset. We send you a link with instructions to follow so that you can set a new password.

Passwords are case sensitive. Your new password must:

- Be at least ten characters long.
- Contain both letters and numbers.
- Contain at least one non-alphanumeric character (such as a symbol).

Tip: A password may not be accepted if it has been used already in the previous 10 passwords.

To change your Cashflows Go password or request a reset

- 1. Display the Cashflows Go sign in page.
- 2. Select Forgotten password?
- 3. Enter your email address.
- 4. Select **Email link**. We send you an email that contains a link that you can use to set a new password.
- 5. Select the link. You see the Change password page.





- 6. On the Change password page, enter a new password.
- 7. Retype your new password into the Confirm New Password field.
- 8. Select **Submit**. When you have successfully entered your new password, you see a confirmation page to tell you that your new password is now active. We also send you a confirmation email.

Note: These emails sometimes go to the Junk or Spam folder and the link in the email expires after 24 hours. If you have not used the link within 24 hours, you can trigger a new email in the same way.

You can now add more users. It's good practice to add a second partner user as soon as possible in case the first partner account ever needs to be unlocked. For information, see Managing users.

How to sign out from Cashflows Go

It's good security practice to sign out from Cashflows Go instead of only closing the browser.

To sign out from Cashflows Go

1. From the Cashflows Go menu, select My Profile.



2. Select Log Out. The Login page is displayed.





How to choose a business or merchant context

When you sign into Cashflows Go as a partner, you have access to all of your merchant accounts with Cashflows in one place.



When you sign into Cashflows Go as a partner, you can choose to remain working at partner level or in the context of a business or merchant and see transactions and other business information that they see. This is useful if any of your customers need support.

Note: As a partner, your access to merchant information is read-only. You cannot change any merchant details.

To select a context

1. Sign into <u>Cashflows Go</u> as a partner. The Welcome page is displayed.

Cashflows Go	Welcome Test Pa	rtnor	
Select Context			
	Please select the context that you would	d like to view and control.	
	All Recent Favourites		
	Businesses		Merchants
	Continue without Business		
	Business636_Postman_1	☆ >	
	Business636_Postman_2	☆ >	
	MarkTest	☆ >	
	Schilling Waßer äöü	* >	
	Testing R 10.3	* >	
		1 - 5 of 5	
Notifications (2)			
TP My Profile			
My Profile			
My Report Queue			
Log Out	CashflowsGo Notification: test View -	>	





2. Select a level (context) at which you would like to work.

You can choose any of the following context options.

To work in partner context

1. Select Continue without Business:

Businesses	Merchants
Continue without Business	

2. Select Apply.

To work in business context

- 1. Select a Business.
- 2. Select Continue without Merchant:

Businesses			Merchants	
Continue without Business			Continue without Merchant	
Business636_Postman_1	☆	>	Business636_Postman_1	1

3. Select Apply.

To work in merchant context

- 1. Select a Business.
- 2. Select a Merchant:

Businesses			Merchants
Continue without Business			Continue without Merchant
Business636_Postman_1	\overleftrightarrow	>	Business636_Postman_2
Business636_Postman_2	☆		

3. Select Apply. If you selected a business, you see the Transactions page:

Cashflows Go					
Business636_Postman_1	Transactions				
Dashboard Select merchant	Press '/" to search	Q Search		🛗 1 Jan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021 🛛 🏹 Filters 🕒 Export	E Columns
E Transactions	Date	↓↑ Customer Name	Amount Business Name	Merchant Name	
🗐 Reporting 🗸 🗸	08/11/2021, 10:26:32		15.00 GBP Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1	>
Configuration Select merchant	08/11/2021, 10:23:38		25.00 EUR Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1	>
🖶 Your Business 🛛 🗸	08/11/2021, 08:49:40		35.00 GBP Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1	>
음음 Users	08/11/2021, 08:22:18		15.00 GBP Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1	>
ISI Partner				1-4 of 4 Rows per pa	age: 25 🗸





If you selected a merchant, you see the merchant Dashboard:

CashflowsGo Business636_Postman_1 Business636_Postman_1	≥	ashboard									
🕢 Dashboard	Cur	rrent Account Bala	ance Ov	erview							
S== Transactions	Mer	chant Account Statement	Secur	ity Statement		Reserve Stat	ement	Ren	nittance Staten	nent	
	GBP	0.00	GBP O	.00		GBP 0 .00		GBF	O .00		
ැලි Configuration											
🖶 Your Business 🔻	Trail	nsactions Overvie	w								
<u>ළි</u> Users		Day Week M	onth	Year 🛱	Custom 7	7 Filters					
ISI Partner									1	1	
	< 0	Jun 2022 21 Jun 2022 2	22 Jun 2022	23 Jun 2022	24 Jun 2022	25 Jun 2022	26 Jun 2022	27 Jun 2022	28 Jun 2022	29 Jun 2022	30、
	Trar O	nsaction Count (Sales Count	(1)	Sales Reven	ue		erage Transacti P 0 .00	on Value 🚯)[
	:0:0	Transaction Count									

For information about merchant dashboards, refer to the <u>Cashflows Go Guide</u> in our Cashflows Help Centre.

How to customise the display

The columns shown in the examples throughout this guide depend on whether the display has been customised. If a page has a **Columns** button, you can use it to choose which columns to show or hide. This enables you to focus on the detail that you need most.

CashflowsGo Business636_Postman_1 ≓	Transaction	ns						
Deshboard Select merchant	Press "/" to search	Q Search	🗐 1 Jan 2021 - 31	Dec 2021	Filters	- Export	≣≣ Co	lumns
Transactions	Date	Transaction Reference	Customer Name	Order R	eference	Amount	Status	
🖹 Reporting 🗸 🗸	08/11/2021. 10:26:32	211121021667909952		2021Nov	08_7	15.00 GBP	Paid	>
Configuration	08/11/2021, 10:23:38	211121021634224448		2021Nov	08_6	25.00 EUR	Pending	>
🖶 Your Business 🗸 🗸	08/11/2021.08:49:40	211121021500002628		2021Nov	08_5	35.00 GBP	Paid	>
SS Users	08/11/2021.08:22:18	211121004303356228		2021Nov	08_4	15.00 GBP	Paid	>
St Partner					1 - 4 of	4 Rows per	page:	25 🗸



Cashflows

How to show or hide columns

1. Select the **Columns** button.



2. Select each column that you want to display.





3. Clear any columns that you don't want to display.

🔽 Date
Transaction Reference
🗹 Customer Name
Order Reference
🗹 Amount
Status
Channel
Payment Methods
Business ID
🗹 Business Name
Merchant ID
🗹 Merchant Name
Cancel Apply

4. Select **Apply**. The columns are immediately updated on the page that you had displayed.

Managing users

Each Cashflows Go user has a user role. Your user role controls the accounts that you have access to, the options that you can use and the tasks that you can carry out. We set up the initial user with the role of *Partner*. As the first Partner user, you can create additional partner users and assign them a permissions role.

Important: It's good practice to add a second user with *Partner* permissions as soon as possible. This means that there is always a second person with the highest level access permissions. This is essential, for example, if a partner user account ever becomes locked.

As a partner user, you see a Partner option on the Cashflows Go menu. If you select this option, you can see a list of current users, if there are any, and an option to add more users. For information see How to add a user.





How to add a user

To add a user

- 1. Sign into <u>Cashflows Go</u> as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Partner**.
- 3. Select the **Users** page.

Overview A	Associated Bus	inesses Users	
Press '/' to see	arch O	Search	+ New User
First Name	Last Name	Email address	Status
			Account active
			Account active Me
			Account active

4. Select +New User.

← Back to Partner Details	
Add Partner User	
Personal Information	
First Name *	
First Name	
Last Name *	
Last Name	
Email *	
Email	





- 5. Enter the user's first and last names.
- 6. Enter their email address.

Select **Add User**. The new user is created:

Personal Information	Account Information
First Name *	Account active Lock account
Colin	Send Password Reset Link
Last Name *	Delete User
Jackson	
Email *	
colin.jackson@purrfect-partners.com	
Save User Cancel	

7. Select **Save User**. The user details are validated. If there are no errors, the user is created and their account is activated. An email is automatically sent to the specified email address with a message to invite the newly created user to follow a link and set their password.

How to change user details

As a partner user you can change some of the details about other partner level users for your organisation. You can change a user's:

- First name
- Last Name
- Email address
- User role(s)





To change a user's details

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Partner**.
- 3. Select the **Users** page.

Overview A	Associated Bus	inesses Users	
Press '/' to see	urch Q	Search	+ New User
First Name	Last Name	Email address	Status
		partner/upmint #536@mailinetor.com	Account active
			Account active Me
			Account active

- 4. Select the user whose details you want to change.
- 5. Change the details as required.
- 6. Select Save User.

How to delete a user

It's good user management to delete users who no longer need access to your systems, for example if they leave your business or change to a role that no longer requires access to Cashflows Go.

To delete a partner user:

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Partner**.





3. Select the **Users** page.

Overview A	Associated Bus	inesses Users		
Press '/' to see	arch	Search	+ New User	E Columns
First Name	Last Name	Email address	Status	
			Account active	>
			Account active	>
			Account active	>
			Account active	>
			Account active M	/e >
			Account active	>

- 4. Select the user that you want to delete.
- 5. Select Delete User.
- 6. A confirmation message is displayed. If you don't want to delete the user, select Cancel. If you're sure that you do want to go ahead and delete the selected user, select **Delete**.

The user is deleted.

How to unlock a partner user account

For security reasons, if another user enters incorrect sign-in details too many times, their account becomes locked and they may contact you to unlock their account. As the primary partner user, you can do this for any of the partner level users at your organisation.

To unlock an account

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Partner.





3. Select the **Users** page.

Overview A	Associated Bus	inesses Users	
Press '/' to see	arch O	Search	+ New User
First Name	Last Name	Email address	Status
			Account active
			Account active Me
			Account active

- 4. Select the user whose account you want to unlock.
- 5. Select Unlock Account.

How to lock an account

If you ever need to prevent a user from using Cashflows Go, you can lock their account so that they are unable to sign in.

Important: Locking an account is temporary and you can always unlock an account. However, deleting a user's account is permanent and may not be reversed. They need to be added again as a new user. For information, see How to delete a user and How to add a partner user.

To lock an account

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go.
- 2. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 3. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Partner.





4. Select the **Users** page.

Overview A	Associated Busi	inesses Users	
Press '/' to see	arch	Search	+ New User
First Name	Last Name	Email address	Status
			Account active
			Account active Me
			Account active

5. Select the user whose account you want to lock.

Personal Information	Account Information
First Name *	Account active Lock account
	Send Password Reset Link
Last Name *	Delete User
10	
Email *	

6. Select **Lock account**. The user is immediately unable to sign into their account. If a user is already signed in when you lock their account, they are automatically be signed out and cannot sign back in.





\bigcirc

Viewing customer business information

As a partner user, you have read-only access to some business details that relate to your customers. These details include business name, ID, address and nominated signatories. This is the information that was provided to us when you became a partner with us and is stored in Cashflows Go. You can also view a list of outlets (merchants) that are associated with each of your customers.

Note: If it's ever necessary to change any of these details, you need to contact the Cashflows support team: <u>techsupport@cashflows.com</u>.

	Business Over	view - Schilling Waße	ər äöü	
Business Details				
Business Name	Schilling Waßer äöü			
Business ID	157			
Address	Mattiellistrasse 2-4			
City	Vienna			
Country	GB			
Postcode	1040			
Company Registration Nu	Imber			
Signatories Name	Gerhardt Schilling			
Business URL	http://www.schilling.com			
	hants	Merchant Name		Col
190		Schilling		
206		Schilling Too		
			1 - 2 of 2 Rows per page	: 10





As a partner user, you also have read-only access to information about your merchant customers such as name, ID, and support details.

Merchant Name	Schilling Too
Merchant ID	206
Customer Services Email	
	m
Customer Services Telephone	01235654987
Merchant URL	http://www.schilling.com
Support URL	http://www.schilling.com

How to view business details of your customers

As a partner user, you can view details that we store in Cashflows Go about any of the businesses or merchants that are associated with your partner organisation.

To view your business details

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select your Business.
- 3. Select Continue without Merchant.
- 4. Select Apply.
- 5. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Your Business**.





Cashflows

6. Select Business Details.

Business Name	Schilling Waßer	
Business ID	157	
Address		
City		
Country		
Postcode	1040	
Company Registration Number		
Signatories Name		
Business URL		
Associated Merchants		Columns
Merchant ID	Merchant Name	
190	Schilling	
206	Schilling Too	

If you select one of your associated merchants from the list, you have ready-only access to their business details. For information, see How to view business and contact details of a merchant.

How to view your partner commission plans

With Cashflows Go you can view a single page that shows the following different commission plans that are in place for your partner organisation:

- Transaction commission Commission that your organisation earns per transaction
- Merchant Service Charge (MSC) commission Commission that your organisation receives from us for a specified service
- Credit transfer commission
 Commission that your organisation receives if one or your merchant customers is using Credit
 Transfers
- Dispute commission
 Commission that your organisation receives if one or your merchant customers is using
 disputes / chargebacks





To view your commissions plans

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. Select Continue without Business.
- 3. Select Apply.
- 4. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Partner.

Partner Details			
Partner ID	636		
Partner name	1617185 Ontario Inc		
Partner website	-		
Partner type	-		
VISA ISO code	-		
MasterCard ISO code	-		
Merchant Maturity Model	HOURLY		
Commission Plans			Columns
Name		Active Plan	
1617185 Ontario Inc		Active	;

A list of merchants for which commission plans have been set up is displayed below the Partner Details.





5. Select a merchant to display the full list of commission plans that your organisation has in place for selling the services of the selected merchant.

Transaction Commission

Туре	Buy Rate	Split Percentage
Authorisation Request	500.00 GBP	40.00 %
Decline	500.00 GBP	20.00 %
Refund	3,500.00 GBP	20.00 %

MSC Commission

Card Scheme	Buy Rate	Split Percentage
VISA	0.00 GBP + 1.00 %	40.00 %
MasterCard	0.00 GBP + 1.00 %	40.00 %
AMEX	0.00 GBP + 1.00 %	40.00 %

Credit Transfer Commission

Card Scheme	Buy Rate	Split Percentage
VISA	2,000.00 GBP + 0.00 %	40.00 %
MasterCard Domestic Regional	2,000.00 GBP + 0.00 %	40.00 %
MasterCard International	2,000.00 GBP + 0.00 %	40.00 %

Dispute Commission

Туре	Buy Rate	Split Percentage
High risk	150,000.00 GBP	40.00 %
Chargeback	150,000.00 GBP	40.00 %
Copy Request	150,000.00 GBP	40.00 %
Dispute / Pre-arb	150,000.00 GBP	40.00 %

How to view all of your customer transactions

Cashflows Go provides a complete view for all of your customer transactions. The Transactions page is a real-time list that updates to display all incoming transactions together with their status such as *Paid* or *Pending*. The status is updated as a payment passes through the payment processing lifecycle.

Cashflows G	0					
Business636_Postman_1	₽	Transactior	าร			
Dashboard Select merchant		Press '/' to search	Q Search	🛗 1 Jan 2021 - 31 D	Dec 2021 \vec Filters	Export ≣≣ Columns
s= Transactions		Date	↓↑ Transaction Reference	Customer Name	Order Reference	Amount Status
E Reporting	\sim	08/11/2021, 10:26:32	211121021667909952		2021Nov08_7	15.00 GBP Paid >
ලාම Configuration Select merchant		08/11/2021, 10:23:38	211121021634224448		2021Nov08_6	25.00 EUR Pending
F Your Business	\sim	08/11/2021, 08:49:40	211121021500002628		2021Nov08_5	35.00 GBP Paid
ക്ട്ര Users		08/11/2021, 08:22:18	211121004303356228		2021Nov08_4	15.00 GBP Paid
ISI Partner					1 - 4 o	f 4 Rows per page: 25 V





To view all of your customer transactions

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner and do not choose a business or merchant context.
- 2. Select Continue without Business.
- 3. Select Apply. The Transactions page is displayed.

You can customise the list to suit your information needs and focus on exactly what you need to investigate. For information, see How to customise the display.

The Transactions page has a search feature that you can use to search for one or more transactions that match specified criteria. For information, see How to search for transactions.

How to search for transactions

There are many ways to search for transactions in Cashflows Go. To help you locate a specific payment or a set of payments that match specific criteria, you can apply a filter.

Tip: If you often carry out the same search, you can also save a search filter and re-use it.

You can search for and focus on one or more payments that:

- Took place on a specific date or between a start and end date.
- Have the same payment status, for example Paid or Declined.
- Match a specified amount or fall between a minimum and maximum amount.
- Are all in the same currency.
- Were made using the same payment method, for example by card or with PayPal.
- Were made via the same channel, such as:
 - o Online payments via our Cashflows Gateway.
 - o In-store payments via a card machine (as part of our cardholder present solution).
 - Via our acquiring platform.





To search for one or more payments in Cashflows Go

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select a context. For information, see How to choose a partner, business or merchant context
- 3. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Transactions.
- 4. To search for one or more transactions, specify the search criteria to match. Here are some example searches:

Example search for transactions that took place in May and June:

Today	<		Ma	ay 20	22					Ju	ne 20	022		>	
Yesterday	м	Т	W	т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	т	F	S	S	-
This Week							1			1	2	3	4	5	
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	
Last Week	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	
This Month	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	
Last Month	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	27	28	29	30				
This Year	30	31													
Last Year	1 M ©	ay 20		00	~	30 ()) Jun :	2022	59	~					

Example search for declined transactions in the last month:

All Filters Payment Sta Select a pa	Saved Filter	75					
-	tus						
Select a pa							
Select a payment status							
Pending							
Reserved							
Commissio	ned	2					
Paid							
Verified							
Cancelled							
Failed							
Rejected							
Expired							
Declined							
Select a ch	annel	~					
	Commission Paid Verified Cancelled Failed Rejected Expired Blocked Declined	Commissioned Paid Verified Cancelled Failed Rejected Expired Blocked					





Example quick search for the name Smith:

← Back to Da	actions		
/ smith		Q Search	
Filters:	Search term: / smith	×	
Date	11	Transaction Reference	Customer Name
26/04/202	1, 12:35:43	210421000167781196	P Smith

- 5. If any payments match the conditions that you have specified, they are displayed on the page. You can choose which columns to display and hide any that you don't need to see. Select **Columns**.
- 6. Select the columns that you want to display and clear the columns that you don't need.
- 7. You can also choose how many payments to display per page, for example or 10 or 50 or 100.



When you have found the payment(s) that you needed to find, you can select a payment to investigate in more detail.





\bigcirc

Viewing merchant dashboards

As a partner, you have read-only access to the dashboards of your merchant customers. A merchant dashboard presents payment information in a user-friendly graphical format.

Current Account Balan	ce Overview								
Merchant Account Statement	Security Statement		Reserve State	ement		Remitt	ance Statem	ient	
GBP 0 .00	GBP 0 .00		GBP 0 .00			GBP O .(00		
Transactions Overview									
Day Week Mon	th Year	Custom	7 Filters						
< ?7 Jun 2022 28 Jun 2022 29 .	Jun 2022 30 Jun 2022	01 Jul 2022	02 Jul 2022	03 Jul 2022	04 Jul 2	2022 (05 Jul 2022	06 Jul 2022	07 Jul 202
Transaction Count (i)	Total Sales Count	í	Sales Reven	ue	i	Avera	ge Transacti	on Value (i)	Decline
	0		GBP 0 .00			GBP 0	00		0

You can search for and view transactions placed via the Cashflows Go Virtual Terminal and/or any other channels such as Card or PayPal.

Dashboard ₪ GBP ∨ Transactions Balance Compare Custom Day Week Month Year < b 2020</p>
27 Feb 2020
28 Feb 2020
29 Feb 2020
29 Feb 2020
O1 Mar 2020
02 Mar 2020
03 Mar 2020
04 Mar 2020
05 Mar 2020
06 Mar 2020
07 Mar 2020
08 Mar 2020
09 Mar 2020
10 Mar 2020 11 Mar 202 Total number of sales Turnover Average spend 234 GBP 3414.96 GBP 14.59 1 Τ ↓ 11 Mar 2019 👬 Sales volume 36 18 12:00 13:00 14:00 15:00 16:00 17:00 18:00 19:00 20:00 21:00 22:00 23:00 00:0 11:00 11 Mar 2019

Here's an example of a merchant dashboard:



Cashflows

For information, see:

- How to view merchant transactions
- How to search for transactions.

You can also:

- View the business and contact details of a merchant. For information, see How to view business and contact details of a merchant
- View a pricing plan for a selected merchant. For information, see The Transactions page has a search feature that you can use to search for one or more transactions that match specified criteria. For information, see How to search for transactions.

How to view business and contact details of a merchant customer

If you need them you can find the business details, such as Merchant ID, and contact details for any of your merchants in one handy place via Cashflows Go.

To view the business and contact details of a merchant

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select a business.
- 3. Select a merchant.
- 4. Select Apply.
- 5. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Your Business.







6. Select **Merchant Details**. An overview pages is displayed with the business and support details for the selected merchant.



How to view merchant transactions

As a partner, you have read-only access to the payment information of your merchant customers. You can view a merchant dashboard for a real-time graphical snapshot. You can also view transaction information in more detail. You can then search for and view transactions placed with the merchant via the Cashflows Go Virtual Terminal and/or any other channels such as Card or PayPal.

To view merchant transactions

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select a business.
- 3. Select a merchant.





4. Select Apply. The dashboard is displayed for the selected merchant.

	count b	alance O						ACCOL	int Balance Overview
Merchant Accoun Statement GBP O .00		curity Statement P 0 .00	t Reserve	e Stateme	nt	Remittance GBP 0.00	Statement		
Fransactior	ns Overv	view							s= GBP ∨
Day	Week	Month	Year	Custom	7	Filters			Compare date
< Jun 2022 0	2 Jun 2022	03 Jun 2022	04 Jun 2022	05 Jun	2022 0	06 Jun 2022	07 Jun 2022	08 Jun 20	022 09 Jun 2022 >
									👥 Tiles
Transaction Count O View	i) Total Coun → 0		Sales Revenue	e (ì	Avera Transa Value GBP O	iction	Decline C	count (j View →	Decline Amount () GBP 0.00

5. From the Cashflows Go menu, select Transactions. The Transactions page is displayed.

Transactions				
Press '/' to search	Q Search			🗎 1 Jan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021
Date	↓↑ Customer Name	Amount B	Business Name	Merchant Name
08/11/2021, 10:26:32		15.00 GBP B	Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1
08/11/2021, 10:23:38		25.00 EUR B	Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1
08/11/2021, 08:49:40		35.00 GBP B	Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1
08/11/2021, 08:22:18		15.00 GBP B	Business636_Postman_1	Business636_Postman_1
				1 - 4 of 4 Rows per page: 25 💊

You can customise the list to suit your information needs and focus on exactly what you need to investigate. For information, see How to customise the display.

The Transactions page has a search feature that you can use to search for one or more transactions that match specified criteria. For information, see How to search for transactions.





How to view a breakdown of your pricing plans

At any time you can view a breakdown of your account pricing plans for a selected merchant.

To view a merchant pricing plan

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select a business.
- 3. Select a merchant.
- 4. Select Apply.
- 5. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Pricing Plan**.



A full list of pricing plans is displayed for the selected merchant.

Pricing plan				GBP 🗸
Transactional Fees		Dispute Fees		
Authorisation Request Fee	0.22 GBP	High Risk Warnings		10.15 GB
Decline Fee	0.23 GBP	Chargeback Fee 0.20 GE		
Refund Fee	0.25 GBP	Copy Request Fee		
		Dispute Fee/Pre-arb Fee		0.30 GB
Merchant Service Charges				
	Domestic	Regional		Rest of the World
Amex	0% 0.00 GBP	0% 0.00 GBP		0% 0.00 GBP
Consumer Credit	2.81% 0.19 GBP	2.88% 0.21 GBP		3.53% 0.19 GBP
Consumer Debit	1.72% 0.33 GBP	2.66% 0.54 GBP		3.49% 0.22 GBP
Corporate Credit	3.14% 0.19 GBP	3.21% 0.21 GBP		3.85% 0.19 GBP
Corporate Credit Corporate Debit	3.14% 0.19 GBP 3.28% 0.31 GBP	3.21% 0.21 GBP 3.14% 0.29 GBP		3.85% 0.19 GBP
Corporate Debit				
Corporate Debit			Fee	
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees		3.14% 0.29 GBP	Fee 1%	3.82% 0.21 GBP
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme		3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount		3.82% 0.21 GBP
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa		3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP	1%	3.82% 0.21 GBP
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa Master Card Domestic Regional Master Card International		3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP 1.00 GBP	1% 1% 0%	3.82% 0.21 GBP
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa Master Card Domestic Regional Master Card International Gateway Fees		3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP 1.00 GBP	1% 1% 0%	3.82% 0.21 GBP
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa Master Card Domestic Regional Master Card International Gateway Fees Account Updater Fee	3.28% 0.31 GBP	3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP 1.00 GBP Gateway Transac	1% 1% 0%	3.82% 0.21 GBP Percentage
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa Master Card Domestic Regional Master Card International Gateway Fees Account Updater Fee Fraud Monitoring Fee	3.28% 0.31 GBP	3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP 1.00 GBP Gateway Transac Transactional Limit (Mo	1% 1% 0%	3.82% 0.21 GBP Percentage Tiers Transaction Fee
Corporate Debit Credit Transfer Fees Card Scheme Visa Master Card Domestic Regional	3.28% 0.31 GBP 100.00 GBP 200.00 GBP	3.14% 0.29 GBP Fee Amount 1.00 GBP 1.00 GBP Gateway Transact Transactional Limit (Mo 1000	1% 1% 0%	3.82% 0.21 GBP Percentage Tiers Transaction Fee 0.10 GBP





How to view a list of all customer in one place

You can view a list of all of your customers (their business IDs and their merchants that are assigned to your partner organisation).

To view all customers in one place

- 1. Sign into Cashflows Go as a partner.
- 2. Select a business.
- 3. Select a merchant.
- 4. Select Apply.
- 5. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Partner**.
- 6. Select the **Associated Businesses** page.

Overview	Associated Businesses	Users	
Press '/' to s	earch Q Search		Columns
Business ID	Business Name	Business URL	Transactions
100123789	Business636_Postman_1	cashflows.com	View Transactions
100123790	Business636_Postman_2	cashflows.com	View Transactions

From the Associated Business page you can:

- Select a business ID to display an Overview of the selected business together with a list of associated merchants.
- Select the business URL to visit the website for the selected merchant
- Select View Transactions to display the Transactions page for the associated business.



\bigcirc

Configuration

When you sign in to Cashflows Go as a partner, you have read-only access to the configuration pages of your outlet (merchant) customers. You can see each merchant's account configuration and provide support when your customers have questions or need help with their integration into Cashflows.

To display configuration details:

- 1. Sign in to Cashflows Go as a partner and select a context, depending on the configuration that you want to display. For information, see How to choose a partner, business or merchant context.
- 2. From the Cashflows Go menu, select **Configuration**. The Configuration pages are displayed for the business or merchant that you selected. You can see how they have configured:
 - Emails for abandoned payments and order confirmations
 - The webpage addresses (return URLs) to use for redirecting customers after payment processing
 - Where to send payment status updates (notifications)
 - The payment methods that are enabled







+44 (0) 330 128 9855

Cambridge CPC1 Capital Park Cambridge CB21 5XE London 20 Farringdon St London EC4A 4AB The Netherlands Noorderhof 24 5804 BV Venray